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SARA J. DRAKE _ State Bar No. 168058
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WILLIAM L. WILLIAMS, JR. P.O. Box 944255

Depu’cy Attorney General . Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
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Deputy Attorney General Fax: (916)327-2319
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MOTION THAT THE COURT TAKE JUDICIAL NOTICE

. _ A. Real Party in Interest California Gambling Control Commission
moves this Court for an Order that it take judicial notice pursuant to |
Evi_d_ence Code section 452, subdivision (d) of the following miatter: .
Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief
(FAC) filed in California Valley Mz’wok Tribe, ef al., v. Ken Salazar, et al.,
No. 1:1 l-év-00160, in the United Statés District Court for the District of
Columbia.

B. Judicial notice of this document is relevant because it seté forth
the scope of issues b‘efore the United States District Court and goes to the
propriety of relief sought in the Petition for Writ of Mandate.- |

C. This document was not presented to the trial court.

D.  This motion is based on the accompanying supporting
memorandum and the supporting declaration of Neil D. Houston.

MEMORANDUM

Section 452,V subdivision (d) allows for the taking of judicial notice of
the “[r]ecords of . . . any court of record of the United States or of any state
of the United State_s.” The FAC is such a record of the United States
District Court for the District of Columbia. Section 453 of the Evidence
Code provides that judicial notice of the matters set forth iﬁ section 452 is
mandatorsl if properly requested by a paﬁy. The requesting pafty must give

sufficient notice of the request to enable the adverse party to prepare to



meet it, and furnish the court with sufficient information to enable the

Court to take judicfal notice of the matter. (Evid. Code, § 453, subd. (a) &

(b)) |

Dated: June 15,2012

Respectfully submitted,

KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California
SARA J. DRAKE

Senior Assistant Attorney General
WILLIAM L. WILLIAMS, JR.
Deputy Attorney General
RANDALL A. PINAL

Deputy Attorney General

e

NEIL D. HOUSTON

Deputy Attorney General

Attorneys for Real Party in Interest
California Gambling Control Commission

~ SUPPORTING DECLARATION OF NEIL D. HOUSTON

I, NEIL D. HOUSTON, declare:

This declaration is submitted in support of this motion that the court

take judicial notice.

1. Iam aDeputy Attorney General with the California Department

of Justice, Office of the Attorney General, and am one of the attorneys of

 record for the California Gambling Control Commission (Commission) in

this matter. I am an attorney at law duly licensed to practice before all



courts within the State of California. From May, 2007 to the present, I
have been employed in the Indian and Gaming Law Section of the Office of
the Attpfney General of Califqrnia which has responsibility for representing
state agencies in tribal gaming matters. I have personal knowledge of the

facts set forth below and if called as a witness, I could and would
competently téstiﬁ/ to them.

| 2. Exhibit A attached hereto is a true and correct cépy of the FAC
filed on October 17, 2011, in the United States District Court for the |
District of Columbia, California Valley Miwok Tribe, et al., v. Ken Salazar,
etal., No. 1:11-cv-00160. Exhibit A was received by ’éhe Ofﬁcé of the
Attorney General of California in the regular course of business and has
been maintained in the case file for this matter over which I have custody.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of

California that the foregoing is true and correct.

NEIL D. HOUSTON




ORDER
The fcquest that judicial notice be tak¢n in this cause pursuant to
section 452, subdivision (c) of the Evidence Code, of the Plaintiff’s First
‘Amended‘ Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief is hereby

granted.

Presiding Judge

SA2012106086
31474219.doc
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
- FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBI_A
Civil Division

THE CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE,

11178 Sheep Ranch Road

Mountain Ranch, CA 95246

THE TRIBAL COUNCIL,
11178 Sheep Ranch Road
Mountain Ranch, CA 95246°

YAKIMA DIXIE,
11178 Sheep Ranch Road
Mountain Ranch, CA 95246

VELMA WHITEBEAR,
213 Downing Drive
Galt, CA 95632

ANTONIA LOPEZ,
P.O. Box 1432
Jackson, CA 95642

MICHAEL MENDIBLES,
P.O. Box 266
West Point, CA 95255

EVELYN WILSON,
4104 Blagen Blvd.

ANTONE AZEVEDO, >
4001 Carriebee Ct. .
North Highlands, CA 95660 °

V.

KEN SALAZAR, in his official capacity-as
Secretary of the United States Department of the
Interior,

United States Department of the Interior

1849 C Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20240

LARRY ECHO HAWK, in his official capacity as
. Assistant Secretary-Indian Affairs of the United
States Department of the Interior, ,
Department of the Interior
1849 C Street, N.W.
Washington DC 20240

MICHAEL BLACK, in his official capacity as

' Director of the Burean of Indian Affairs within the

Case No. 1:11-cv-00160-RWR
Hon. Richard W. Roberts

-1
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United States Department of the Interior,
Bureau of Indian Affairs

MS-4606 o

1849 C Street, N'W.

‘Washington, D.C. 20240

Defendants.

PLAINTIFES' FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE

RELIEF

Plamtlffs ask the Court to vacate an erroneous decision of the Assistant Secretary — Indian
Affalrs for the United States Department of the Intenor ("Department") that arbxtranly limits the
membership of a federally recognized Indian tribe to five people and dls_enfranchlses 242 adult
members of the tribe plus‘their. children, without due process and in violation of the Department's trust,.
reéponsibilities to Indian trit)es and their members. Because the decision knowingly recognizes a
tribal government based on a tribal document adopted without the knotvled'ge, participation or consent

of the vast majority of the tribe's members, it violates federal law and must be reversed.

Plaintiffs Yakima Dixie, the California Valley Miwok Tribe ("Tribe"), and Tribe members
Velma Whitebear, Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilsonand Antone Azevedo,
a individually and as members of the ;I‘ribal Council ("Council"), therefore submit this First Arnended .
‘Complaint against the Defendants, Ken Salazar, Secretary.of the Department, Larry Echo Hawk, |
Assistant Secretary— Indian Affairs ("AS-IA") of the Department, and Michael Black, Director of the

Bureau of Indian Affairs ("BIA") within the Department, and state and allege as follows:

INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY
L. The Tribe is a federally recognized Indian tribe that was recognized around 1915 when
the United States purchased the Sheep Ranch Rancheria for the benefit of a small band of Miwok

"Indians living near Sheep Ranch, California. Today the Tribe has approximately 242.adult members,
2
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and approximately 350 members under the age of 18, who are lineal descendants of the ori ginal 1915
members. ‘

2. In 1935, the Tribe voted to accept the Indian Reorgaﬁization Act 0f 1934 '("IRA"),'

. which allowed tribes to assume the responsibility of self-government by adopting governing
documents and establishing a tribal government. The process of creating a tribal goverhment is known
as "organization," or sometimes "reorganization." For tribes that have accepted the IRA, organization
must comply with the substantive and proeedural requirements of the IRA. |

3. Despite'accepting the IR A, the Tribe has never organized itself. For many years its
members tnatntained only an informal Tribal comrhunity; eltheugh many lived on the Rancheria at
various times or in the surroundmg area and mamtalned familial and commumty ties.

4, In 1998, at the BIA's urging, a woman named Silvia Burley approached Yaklma Dixie,
whom the BIA recogm_zed asa Trlbal spoke,sperson at that time. Ms. Burley, a resident ofa -
neighboring Indian cotnmu_n'ity, asked to be enrolled into the Tribe along with her twe daughters and
her granddaughter (collectively, the "Burleys"). ‘The BLA erroneously told Mr. Dixie that he had the
authority to enroll the Butleyé into the Tribe, and he agreed to do so. The B_IA' thereafter treated the
Burleys as Tribel members, although their entollment was invalid without Tri,ltal consent.

5. Around September 1998, Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley began discussions with'the BIA
>about orgamzmg the Tribe, The BIA erroneously told Mr. D1x1e that the peOple entltled to part101pate
in the 1mt1a1 orgamzatmn of the Tribe were determmed by a plan for distribution of tribal assets that
had been approved in 1966 as part of an unsuccessful attempt to “terminate” the Tn_be’ under the
»California Rancheria Act. The BIA concluded that t]:tese people included Mr. Dixie, his brother
Melvin Dixie; and the Burleys (by virtue of theit purported enrollment), and that those individuale .

" were entitled to decide who else might participate in Tribal organization. This conclusion was and is

incorrect.

CGCC-RJN-003
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6. Contrary to the BIA.’S conelueion, all lineal descendants of the Tribe's original merbers
" (circa 1915) were members of the Tribe in 1998 and weré entitled to participate in any organization
effort. Of the Tribe’s currént members, at least 83 were alive and over ihe age of 18 in 1998 and were
-entitled to pzirticipate in any organization qf the Tribe (the “1998 Adult Members™). Other, now-
deceased members were also alive in 1998 and entitled to participate. . |
, 7. The BIA suggested to Mr. Dixie that the Tribe form a general council as an interim step
in order to manage itself until .it had adopted a constitution' and completed the organization process as
deﬁned in the IRA. A general counc1l is a form of government con31stmg of all of a tribe’s mernbers
The BIA supplied a resolution purporting to create such a general councﬂ and Mr, Dixie and Ms.
. Burley signed the resolution on November 5, 1998 (the."1998 Resolution"). The adoption of the 1998
Resolution was invalid. | A -
8. The Tribe'never. completed the organization Iirocess that the 1998 Resolution was
iniended to facilitate. A dispute erupted between Ms. Burley and Mr. Dixie over control of the
' organlzatlon process, with both sides pursuing organizatmn under separate documents. |
9. TheBIA reJ ected constitutions that Ms. Burley submitted in the name of the Tribe in
1999,;2000, 2001 and 2004, which essentially would have limited Tribal membership to Mr. Dixie, the
' Burleys and their descendants. The BIA, revereing the erroneous advice it provided Mr. Dixie in |
- 1999, informed Ms. Burley tliat organization rnusi in:/olve the entire Tribal coni'miiniiy, and it
identiﬁed a nunieer of other p‘eop'le wlie must tie allowed to perticipate; including the lineal
descendants of historical Tribe members. Ms. Burley resnonded by ﬁling a series of administrative”
appeals and federal court challengeS'seelcing to compel the BIA to recoénize the Tribe as organized
under her constitution and with her as its leader. |

10.  Ms. Burley's appeals culminated'in a 2006 decision by the federal district court for the

District of Columbia, which upheld the BIA's rejection df Ms. Burley's 2004 constitution. The court
4
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héld that the IRA imposes fundamental requirements on tribal organization, includfng notice, a defined
process, and minimum levels of participation. California Valley Miwok Tribe v. Um"'ted Szat'es,i 424
F .Supp.‘.2d 197 (D.D.C. Mar. 31, 2006). The federal government argued that the BiA has a "duty to
ensure that the interests of all tribe members are protected during organization and that governing
.do‘cumcnts reflect the will of a majorify of the Tribe's members," and the court agreed. Because the "
BIA estimated that the'Tribal comﬁuniW entitled to participate in organization "may exceed 250
’ rrnlérnbcrs,..“ while Ms. Burley had‘ri,nvolvcc'i only herself and her daughters, rejecﬁon of the Burley
constitution was consistent with the BIA's duty. | |

11. The Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit affirmed in a published
opinion, holding thaf, "Although [the Tribe], by its own admission, 1has a potential membership of 250,
only Burley and her small group of supporters had a hand in adOptiné her proposed constitution. This
antimaj oritarian gambit deserves no stamp of 'approval 'fror‘n the Secretary." California Valley. Miwok
Tr;ibe v, United States, 515 F.3d 1262, 1267 (D.C. Cir. 2008). . - |

2. F ollbwing theldisttfict court's decisiqn, in 2006, the‘ BIA atteﬁ1pted to assist the Tribe in
ide‘ntifying. its entire membérship .by asking descendents of the 1915 members to submit genealogies
showing their status as lineal descendaﬁts of historical Tribe members, Once the lineal dcséendgnts
were identified, .the BIA blanned to arrange a meeting so the members could proceed with Tribal
organization if they wished to do so. Ms. Burley filed administrative appeals, .essentially attcmpting to
re-litigate her I-Jrevious position that the Tribe was already organized under her leadership. Those
appéals eventually led to a'decision on August 31, 2011 by the AS-IA (Exhibit "A") (the "August 31
Decision™). ‘

13. In the August 31 Decision, the AS-IA fou.nd, without any explanation or sﬁpport, that |

the membership of the Tribe is limited to five people. In doing so, he ignored the overwhelming

CGCC -RJIN - 005
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evidenc':e before him that the Tribe's membe_rslrup curreutly includes 242 adult members and their
childretx, who are lineal desc_endauts of historical Tribe members.

14. - Inthe August 31 Decision, the AS-IA found that those ﬁue pedple had established a
.valid Tribal geverument under the 1998 Resolution. The 1998 Resolution was void ab initio as a
Tribal action and could not be a valid governing document because it was adopted without notice to,
or consent of, a vast majority of the Tribe and did not comply with the IRA. : |

15. In the August 31 Decision, the AS IA explicitly repud1ated and fa1led to carry out the
BIA's duty to ensure that the interests of all Tnbal members are protected durmg orgamzatlon and that
the governing documents for the Tribe reflect the will of a majority of the members, as required by the

IRA and biuding decisional law of this Circuitt, vTh’e AS-IA has no authority to do se.

16. | The August 31 Decision cedes complete control of the Tribe to the Burleys and
depxjives Plati_nt_iffs and the Trtbe's other members of fundamental rights in violation of the U.S.
'Coustitution, the fndian Ctvt'l Rights Act, the IRA, t}te Department's trust responsibility to the Tribe |

and its memb‘ers, and other federal laws,

JU_RtSDICTION AND VENUE -

17.  This Court has jurisdietien'over this ac'tion-pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 because the
asserted clalms arise under the Constltutlon and laws of the Unlted States. . '

18. Th1s Court also has Junsdlctlon over thlS action pursuant to 28 US.C.§ 1361 in that the
Tribe seeks to compel officers and employees of the United States and its agencies to perform duties
owed to the Tribe, |

19, This Court also has jurisdiction over this.action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1362 beceuse'
the Tribe is an Indtan tribe duly recognizetl by the Secretary of the Interior, and the matter iu :

controversy arises inder the Constitution, laws or treaties of the United States.
-6-
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20.  Venue is proper in this Cour!:vunder' 28U.5.C. § 13'91(6) because the Secretary, the AS-

1A, the Director of the BIA, and the Department are Jocated in this district.

21, Judicial review of the agency action is authorized by the Administrative Procedure Act
("APA"), 5 U.S.C. §§ 702, 704 and 706. The AS-IA's decision is final agency action under the APA

and 25 C.F.R. § 2.6(c).

22, The requested declaratofy and iﬁjuﬁctive relief is authorized by 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201-
2202, | -
23, Plaintiffs have exhausted their administrative remedies and ar;e not required to pursue
'é;dditional ad1r¥inistratiye rerﬁedies before seeking and obtaining judicial re'liéf.
24.  Anactual case and controversy has arisen and now exists betweén the parties with
regard to the AS-IA'é violations of the constitﬁtiondl provisions, statutes and regulations cited herein.
_E_A,BI_IES
25. Plaintiff California Valley Miwok Tribe, also known as the "Sheeb Ranch Rancheria,"
th<|e "Sheep Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Ihdians»of _Califorﬁia," and the "Sheep Raﬁch Band of Me- |
wuk Indians of the Sheep Ranch Ranchcﬁa,’,’ is a federally rpcogniied Indian tribe situated in Sheep
Ranch, Califomnia, in Calaveras County. The Tribe consists of Indian members and their descendants,
and/or their Indian successors in interest, fof whose benefit the United States acqﬁired and created the
Sheep Ranch Rancheria. As of April 36, 2011, the membership of the Tribe consisted of 242 aduit '
members and their childrer; (”Current Members"). At least 83 members of‘ the Tribe were alive and at
-least 18 years old on November 5, '1‘998 ("1998 Adult Members")'.
26.  Plaintiff Yakima Dixie is the Traditidnal Spokespersorn, and the historical Chéirperson, ,
of the California Valley Miwok Tribe and a member of its Tribal Council. Miwok tribes ﬁse thé term
"'spokesperson" rather than "chief" to describe their traditional léaders, reflecting the Miwok tradition |

of consensus-based government.

CGCC - RIN-007
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27, Plaintiff Tribal Council is the legitimate governing body of the Tribe as recognized by a
maj ority of Tribal members. The Council consists of Mr. Dixie and Tribe meml)ers Velma Whitebear,

Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson, Antone Azevedo, Shirley Wilson and Iva

Carsoner,

28,  Plaintiffs Velma WhiteBear, Antonia.Lopez,Micha’el Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and
Antone Azevedo are members of the Tribe and of the Tribal Cduncil. Each is a lineal descendant of a
historical member-or members of the Tribe.

| . 29. Defendant Ken Salazar is the Secretary of the United States Department of the Interior.
Mr, Salazar is responsxble for the supervision of the various federal agen01es and bureaus w1th1n the .
Department, including the BIA. M. Salazar is an officer or employee of the United States and has a
direct statutory duty to carry out the _provisions of the IRA ‘and other relevant laws. ‘M. Salazar is
sued in his official eapacity only. o | |

30.  Defendant Larry Echo Hawk is the AS-IA of the Department and head of the Bureau of
Indian Affairs. Mr. Echo Hawk issued the Angust 31 Decislon that is challenged in this action. Mr
Bcho Hawk is sued in his official capacity only. o

31, Michael Black is the Director of the Bureau of Indian Affairs within the Denartment.
Mr. Black is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the BIA, including its relations with federally
reco gmzed Indlan tribes. Mr. Black is sued in his ofﬁ01al capacity only. |

RELEVANT FACTS

Tribal History and Membership
32, In1915, a Umted States Indian Service official discovered a small cluster of leok
Indians living in or near Sheep Ranch, California, which was a remnant of a once- larger band. In 1916

the United States purchased approx1mately one acre of land near Sheep Ranch and created the Sheep

CGCC - RJN-008



Case 1:11-cv—00160-RWR Document 32 Filed 10/17/11 Page 9 of 42

* Ranch Rancheria for the benefit of those Indians. The United States 'subsequently recognized the.

Sheep Ranch Band of Me-wuk Indians as a federal Indian tribe. -

33.  The Iinitial members of the Tribe were th6s¢ listed in the 1915 Sheep Ranch Indian
ceﬁsus. Their names were: Péter Hodge, Annie Hodge, Malida Hodge, Lena Hodge, Tom Hodge, -
Andy Hodge, Jeff Davis, Betsey Davis, Mrs. Limpey, J ohn Tecumchey, Pinkey Tecumchey and
Mamy Duncan, Peter Hodge was their leader. - |

34, In 1935, the United States held an election in which Tribal members voted on whether
‘Ico a;.ccept or reject the application of the IRA to the :l“ribq. The United States' 1935 IRA approved
voter list for the Tribé listed one Tribé mefnbcr: Jeff Davis. '

35, Thé .individuals listed in the 1915 ‘S'heep Ranch Indian census aﬁd in the 1935 IRA
approved voter list for the Tribe wére members of the Tribe. - |

"36. The lin'eal'descendanté of thé individuals listed in the 1915 Sheep Ranch Indian c"e.nsus
and in the 1935 IRA approved voter list for the Tribe were, and are, meﬁbers of the Tribe at all times |
relevant to this iitigation. |

- . The Indian Reorganization Act

37, | Thel Tribe voted to acégpt the IRA in 1935.~

38.  The IRA allows Indian tribes to "organize," or form a tribal governfnent, by adopﬁng a
written constitution or other governing documents. Successful organizafion allows a "cri.be"to esfablish
government-to~-government relations with the United States and with state and ldcal govemmen‘gé.

39.  For Tribes that hz.ivé accepted it,.the IRA establishes‘ brocadural and subétantive
requirements for organization. 'fhese requirements .include notice, a defined process, and minimum .
levels of participation by a tribe’s members. |

"40.  Under the IRA, the Secretary has a duty'to ensure that the Department recogﬁizes oﬁly

a legitimate tribal government that reflects the participation and consent of a majority of the Tribe’s

9.
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membership. This duty is informed anéi strengthened by the United States’ trust obligations to Indian
tribes and their memBAers.
IThe California Rancheria Act and Failure to Terminate'the Tribe

41.  In 1958, Congress enacted the California Rancheria Act, which authorized the
S'eo'retary';to terminate the lands:and trust status of enumerated Indian tribes on California Rancherias
u.ndef certain conditions.

- 42, . The Tribe was never terminated pursuant to the California Rancheria Act. The United
States has recognized the T;ibe as‘ an Indian Tribe since its inception and continues to do so.
| The Invalid 1998 Resolution ' |
43.  The 1998 Resolution recites that it was signed by a majority of the Tribe's adult |
‘members. Tha.t is incorrect. A “majority” means more than ong-half. Only two people signed the "
1998 Re;,solution. |

44, Tﬁe 1998 Resolption identified four Tribal members who were adults in 1998: Ya;kima _
Dixie, Melvin Dixie, Silvia Burléy and Rashel Reznof. -The 1998 Resolution did not sféte that these
were the only members of the Tribe. It recited that that Tnbe consis:ted of "at least" those members. _
The identification of the Buﬂeys :as members was incorrect because Yakima Dixie did not have £he
authority to enroll them into the Tribe without the c'onsenf of the Tribe's existing n;elnbers.

45. ° The 1998 Adult Members were also members of the Tribe in November 1998. There _'
were also 1nény otﬁer mermbers in 1998 SNho have died since theﬁ, Except for Yakima Dixie, none of
the 1998 Adult 1nember§ or the now-deceased members signed the 1998 Resolution.‘

46. Neithér Melvin Dixie nor any of the 1998 Adult MemEers (excépt for Yakima Dixie) or
the now-deceased rnembe;s réceived actual or constructive notice 6f the 199_8 Resolution prior to ité
éd‘optidn or were provided with an opportunity to participate in the process of drafting or Voting on the

11998 Resolution, Most or all of these members Were living in the vicinity of the Sheep Ranch
-10-
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Rancheria in 1998, were readily identiﬁable as Tribal members, and were known_or should have been
known to the BIA. |
47. -~ The 1998 Resolution was mvahd and of no force and effect because it was adopted
_ w1thout notice to, part1c1pat1on by, or consent of a majority of the Tnbe s adult members

Burley Seeks Control of the Tribe
48. Shortly after her purported enrollment, Ms. Burley sought to take control of the Tribe.

The 1998 Resolution named Mr. Dixie as the Tribe's chairperson. Butin Apnl 1999, Burley c¢laimed
that she was the Chau’person That cla1m was and is false |

49, Burley submitted proposed Tnbal constlmt1oos to-the BI_A in 1999, 2000 and 2001.
- The constitutions would have timited Tribal membership to the Burleys, their descerldants and, ixr
some cases, Mr, Dixie. No Tribal member except for the Burleys had :a.ny part in the development or -
ratification of these constitutions. | |

50.  The BIA did not approve any of the constitutions that Burley submitted.

"I"he BIA Rejects Burley’s 2004 Constitution .

51.  Burley submitted another proposed constitution to the BIA in February 2004,
| purportedly to demonstrate that the Tribe was already organized with Ms Burley as its leader,

52, Although Burley had’ acknowledged in federal court jn 2002 that the Tribe had a
poterlnal c1t1zensh1p of "nearly 250 people ” her proposed constitution recogmzed only ﬁve members.

53, InaMarch 26, 2004 letter to Burley, the BIA declined to-approve her latest
corstitution. The BIA explained that efforts to organize a ’fribe must reflect the involvement of the
whole tribal community: |

Where a tribe that has not prev1ously organized seeks to do so, BIA also has a- »
responsibility to determine that the organizational efforts reflect the involvement of the
whole tribal community. We have not seen evidence that such general involvement

was attempted or has occurred with the purported organization of your tribe. ... To our
knowledge, the only persons of Indian descent involved in the tribe's orgamzatlon

-11-
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efforts, were you and your two daughters . . .. Itis only after the greater tribal
community is initially identified that governing documents should be drafted and the

Tribe's base roll and membership criteria identified.

The BIA's letter identified severai groups of Tribe members and segments of the tribal community

who should be involved in the initial organization effoﬁ:s.

54.  The BIA's létter stated fhat "the BIA does not yet view [the .Tribe] to Be an 'organized'
Indian Tribe" a;nd that, because the Tribe w:als unorganized, the BIA could no't recogﬁize Burley as the
Tﬁbe’s chairper;on, | |

55. On February 11, 2005, the AS-IA.seﬁt e.t letter to Mr. Dixie and Burley in which he
reitératéd rﬁany of the decisions made in thé BIA's March 26, 2004 letter. The AS-IA stated:

In that [2004] letter, the BIA made clear that the Federal government did not recognize
Ms. Burley as the tribal Chairman. . . . Until such time as the Tribe has organized, the
Federal government can recognize no one, including yourself, as the tribal Chairman. I
encourage you . . . to continue your efforts to organize the Tribe along the lines outlined
in the March 26, 2004 letter so that the Tribe can become organized and enjoy the full
benefits of Federal recognition, The first step in organizing the Tribe is identifying
putative tribal members.’ ‘ .

56.  The AS-IA's 2005 let'ter.made'clear that the BIA's rejection 6f Ms. Burley's constitution
iﬁplicitly encompassed any and all tribal governing documents suBmiﬁed prior to that date, aﬁd any
.Iﬁurported Tribal government created by any such documents: "In light of the BIA's letter of Mafch 26,
2004 ... the BIA does not recognize any Tribal governmént ...." (emphasis added). |

57. Aftér the AS-IA'S 2005 determin'atipn, the BIA: sought to wérk with Mr. Dixie_:'s .Tribal.
" Council and the Tribe to complete the organization process. Mr. Dixié and the BIA invited Burley to
participate, but she again rcfused and instead ﬁled suit challéngiﬁg the AS-IA's decision.- | |
| | The District Court and Court of Appeals Uphold the BI'A's'Decision.
58.  In April 2005, Burley filed éuit in the -federal 'd‘istric't court for thé District of Columbia,
in the name of the Tribe. vThe suit challenged the BIA's rejection of the constitution submitted by

Burley and its refusal to recognize any governing documents or governing body of the Tribe. Burléy
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sought a judgment tﬁat the Tribe had the inherent sovereign authority to adopt governing docufnents
outside of the IRA and that the Tribe was lawfully organized pursuant to that authority. Burley-did not
contest the »BIA's specific decision not to recognize her as the Tribal Chairperson. -

59. The’ district court dismissed Burley's claims in March 2006. The court noted that the
- Burleys had submifted a constitution that "conferred tﬁbal membership only upon them and their
descendants . . . [but] the government estimates that the greater fribal community, which should be ‘
included in the organization proce,ss,‘ may exceed 250 - members." The cidurt found tﬁaf the Secretary
has "a réspénsibility to ensure that [she] deals only with a tribal government that éctually represents
the ﬁmmbé_rs of a tribe" and that., £he BIA has a "duty.to enéure th?.t the interests of all tribe members
a.re': protected during organization and that governing documents reflect tfxe will of a majority of thé
Tribe's members.;' California Valley Miwok Tribe, supra, 424 F.Supp;id 197. This is true "whether ‘
or not [a tribe] choose[s] to organize under the IRA. procedﬁres [of section 476(a)]." The court found’
the BIA's decisions consistent with that duty. " | _ |

60. Burléy challenged the district court's decision, and the Court of 'Appeals fér the District ©
of Columbia Circuit afﬁrméd. California Valley Miwok Tribe, supra, 515 F.3d 12_62. Accordiﬁg to
the Court of Appeals, the rej ection of the Burley government and constitution fulfilled a comersténe of
the United States’ trust o;bligation to Indian tribes: to'"promote a tribe's political integrity, which-
includes ensuring that the will of tribal thembers is not thwarted by rogue leaders when it comes to
" decisions affecting federal benefits." |
61.  The Céurt of Appeals further explained:

In Burley's view, the Secretary has no role in determining whether a tribe has properly
organized itself . . .. That cannot be. . .. [T]he Secretary has the power to manage “all
Indian affairs and all matters arising out of Indian relations.” . . . The exercise of this
authority is especially vital when, as is the case here, the government is determining
whether a tribe is organized, and the receipt of significant federal benefits turns on the -
decision. The Secretary suggests that her authority . . . includes the power to reject a
proposed constitution that does not enjoy sufficient support from-a tribe's membership.
Her suggestion is reasonable, particularly in light of the federal government's unique
trust obligation to Indian tribes. (Emphasis in original.)

13-
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" The court concluded:

Although [the Tribe], by its own admission, has a potential membership of 250, only
Burley and her small group of supporters had a hand in adopting her proposed
constitution. This antimajoritarian gambit deserves no stamp of approval from the
Secretary. ' .

The Department's Representations in Federal Court

62. In its brief to the D.C. Circuit, the United States Department of Justice, on behalf of the

Departmént of the Interior, stated, inter alia:

[T]he Burley Government does not dispute that the vast majority of the potential
membership of the Tribe did not have an opportunity to participate in the election of
Burley as chairperson or in the adoption of the government documents. Instead, the
Burley Government argues that BIA was required, under 25 U.S.C. § 476(h), to

. recognize the Tribe as organized, and to recognize the Burley Government and its
proffered governing documents, notwithstanding this lack of participation. The district
court properly rejected this argument, reasoning that while Section 476(h) recognizes
the "inherent sovereign power" of "each Indian tribe" to "adopt governing documents
under procedures other than those specified in" the IRA, Section 476(h) does not
eliminate the IRA's requirements that governing documents be ratified by a majority
vote of the adult members of the tribe.

63. The United States further stated in its brief:

Section 476(h) does not impose a duty on BIA to recognize a tribal government or
governing documents where, as here, they are adopted without the consent or
participation of a majority of the tribal community. Nothing in Section 476(h) suggests
. that Congress intended to alter the substantive standards that apply when a tribe seeks

to organize, including Section 476(a)(1)'s requirement that governing documents be
"ratified by a majority of adult members of the tribe." In addition, for an "Indian tribe"
to organize under the IRA, action by the tribe as a whole is required; action by an
unrepresentative faction is insufficient. ' .

The government added that "nothing in Section 476(h) limits the Secretary's broad authority —

independent of the IRA — to ensure the legitimacy of any purported tribal government that seeks to

. engage in that govenuneht—to-govemment relationship with the United States" (emphasis addedj.

64. The government.also stated in its brief that "the Burley Government [cannot] speak[]

for the Tribe in the exercise of [the Tribe's] sovereign power . . . because the undisputed facts show
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that the Burley Government was elected, an‘d__‘its govemning documents adopted, by just three people
- and without the participation of the vast maj ority of the potential members of the Tribe."
| Mr. Dixie's Efforts to Organize the Tribe
65.  While the Burleys were attempting to limit the Tribe to their immediate family, Mr.
Dixie and other Tribal members began to identify and bring together all of the Tribe's members.
Beginning in 2003, they held open meetings of the ’fribe's membership eaeh month, which have been
* held ever since. They also formed the Tribal Council. ' o
66. 'The Council met with the BIA ‘in September 2003 and requested that the BIA call an
election pursuant to the IRA to adopt a Tribal constitnti.o.n and establish éovemment—to—government
relations with the United States. The BIA did not act on the- éouncil‘s request Abut continued to meet
regularly w1th Mr. Dixie and the Council to discuss efforts to organize the Tnbe
67.  With the support and participation of the Tribe's members, the Tr1ba1 Council has met
approximately_every other month since its formation to discuss Tribal policy, enact resolutions, and
conduct ottler Tribal business The Council has made great strides in rebuilding a-functioning Tribel
commumty' Sincé at least 2004, the Tribe and its members have engaged ina vanety of cultural,
‘religious, economic and social activities that benefit the full Tribal membershlp, strengthen the Tr1ba1
community and restore historic ties with the larger' Indian commumty. Tribal activities mclude:‘
a. | The Trilee intervenes in child custody'proceedings under the Indian Child
‘ Welfare Act on behalf of children of Trtbe members In those cases where a ehild’ is removed from its -
family, the Tribe seeks to have the child placed with an Indlan family or a family with ties to Indian
traditions, so that the child is not depnved of its cultural hentage and place in the I.ndlan community,
Burley has opposed the Tribe's efforts in these cases.
t). | The Californie Native American Heritage Commission has-recognized the

Tribe’s Cultural Preservation Comrnittee. Several Tribe members have been trainedto serve as
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cultural monitors on behalf of the Tribe and'vhav'e performed monitoring at construction sites that may
affect Native American cultural and religious artifacts. | |

c. " The Tribe participates, with other Miwok t.ribesv, in an intertribal Miwok
Language Restofation Group that teaches the Miwok language to younger tribe 1nembef$ SO fhat the
language and the tribal traditions are not lost. Plaintiff Evelyn Wilson is the senior Miwok member
who still speaks the Miwok ianguagc. ‘

d. | The Sheep Ranch Rancheria Me-wuk Dancers ("Me—wqic Dancers"), a
ceremonial Indian. dance and cultural preservation group, repreéent the Tribe' at native American
events throughout California. Tribe members Gilbert Ramirez and his son Pete Ramirez organized the
Me-wuk Dancers group af‘the request of Tribal elders. The Me-wuk Dancers play an impomant role in
preserving tine language, cuitural identity and religious traditions of the Tribe.
| e.  The Tribe has been negotiating with the United States Forest Service (”USF'S").
regarding construction of a Uaditiqngl Indian "bruéh house" on USFS land near the Tribe's aﬁcestral :
village. A brush house is an open—roofeci ‘b'uildir‘:g for cbnciubting dances én'd othe.r traditional
ceremonies. It is a key element in Indian cultural and religious traditions, equivalent to a tribe's
church. | ’

f. .Sinée 2004, the Tribe has been'partic‘ipating in the Calaveras Healthy Impact

| Products Solutions proj c;:t ("CHLPS"), ﬁ community supp'orted project ﬂlaf seeks to reduce; wildfire .
hazards to local .'comr‘nunities while ﬁrovidihg econon;ic opportunity for lo'calAworkers. CHIPS
received a grant from thé United States Department of Agriculture in 2007 to support retraining for
workers to participéte in new jobs within the forestry and vegetation control industry. Ambng other
things, CHIPS has trained Native American workers, including Tribe 1nemﬁers; to perform restoration

~ work on federal lands that contain sensitive Native American heritage resources.
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g. Through CHIPS and jche Amador-Calaveras Consens_us'Group ("ACCG"), 2
communify coalition, the Tribe has been engaged in efforts to participate in the USFS Collabprative _
F ores‘t Landscape Restoration Program ("CFLRP_"). Participation in the CFLRP would allow local
~ workers to work with the USFS aﬁd Bureau of Land Management ("BLM") on landscape restoration
and forest stev&./ardship prc;jects. In particular, the USFES is; sgekiﬁg Native American crews (such as
those trained by CHIPS) to participate in programs to reintroduce ‘ﬁre as a management technique on -
federal lands -with sensiti{fe Nativé American heritagevresourc‘es. The participation of the Tribe is
important to the success of the commﬁnity's CFLRP proﬁosal.

h. Tribe members gather certain materiais, such as raptor feathe‘rs, that are needed
for cult,ﬁrél and religious ceremoﬁies. Only members of Indian tribes can'l';egally possess _thgse
materials. Tribe members also gather materials, such as nativ%: plants and willow roots, used in
tfaditidnal cr;fts such as basket weaving, and offer classes in those créfts to ensure that the skills are
not lést, |

| 1 | The Tribe parficipates in the annual Salmon Distribution Pfoject in_wﬁich it
‘obtains several fons of fresh salmon from the Oroville Dam _Iiatchery and distriButgs it tovTr'ibe '
members. |

J- Tl.léT'r\ibe is iﬁvolved in Indian health sérvices, emergency services and food
distribution programs, including the MACT Indian health services program, that benefit members of '
. the Tribe aﬂd .other Indian tribes. | |

- 68. In 2006, the Tribal Council adopted a Tribal constitution, which establisiled that the -
Tribe's first priority ;vas to identify and enr§11 all Tribal ﬁexﬁbers—-—i.e., those who are lineél
descendants of one or moré historical memBers of thé Tribe, as documented by personal geﬁealogi;s,
birth records and other documents. Under the Couﬂcilfs leadership, the Tribe has identified severél

hundred members who wish to p'a'rticipate in the organization of the Tribe. The Tribal roster as of
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Aprii 30, 20 1.1, consists of 242 adult members and approximately 350 children under the age of 18.
. Each of these members‘ is a lineal descendant of one or more historical members of the Tribe, as
documented by personal genealo gies, birth records and other records.

69.  Since 2006, the members of the Tribe have devoted countless hours to drafting a
revised const.i'tution through .an open and transpa:rent process. The contents of the constitution have
been read and debated in many Tribal meetings, including spéciﬁl meetinés called specifically for vthat
purpose. All such meetings weré open to the entire Tribal community. The Tribe has provided .the
Burleys with notxce and an opportumty to partlc1pate but they refused to do so. |

' 70. On July 26, 2011, the Tribe adopted Resolutlon 2011-07-16(b), establishing an Electlon
Committee and providing for voter registration in order to facilitate a Tribal el¢étion to adopt and
ratify the revised consti‘cution.i The Tribe provided the Assistant Secrétary and the BIA with notice of
Resolution 201 1-07-16(b) and of its intent to hqld an election. The only action that remains to |
- complete the Tribal organizéti;)n pfocess is Aﬁnal ratification and adoption of thé éo_nsti’mtioﬁ by the
entire Tribal membership. 'The‘ Tribe plans on hc.)lding an election for that purpose, consistent with the
The BIA Attémpts to Assistvthe Tribé In Organiiing
7.1. On November 6, 2006, after the district court had dlSI’mSSGd Burley s claims, the BIA
informed Ms. Burley that it would ass1st the Trlbe in orgamzmg accordmg to majoritarian principles,
consistent with the decisions upheld by the court,
72. AMs. Burley appealed the Superintendent's November 6, 2006 decisic;n to the BLAfs
Pacific Regional Director. On April 2, 2007, the Régi.onal'Direc"tor.afﬁnned the decision and
remanded the matter back .to the Superintendent to implemeﬁ;c the actions mentioned in fhe
November 6, 2006 d_ecision. The chionai Director Wrote, "We believe the main purpose tof the

b

November 6, 2006 deéision] was to assist the Tribe in identifying the whole community, the ‘putative
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group, who would be entitled to participete' in the Tribe's efforts to organize a government that will
represent the Tribe as a whole. ... It is our belief that until the Tribe has identified the ‘putative’
group, the Tribe will not have a solid foundation uporl which to truild a stable government.”

73.  On April 10 and April 17, 2007, the BIA published public netice of an upcoming
meetiné to organize the Tribe. The notice requested that Putative Members submit doeumentation of

» their membership claim to the BIA (e.g., personal genealogles) The pubhc notice defined the Putative
Members as hneal descendants of: (1) individuals hsted on the 1915 Indlan Census of Sheep-ranch
Indians; (2) individuals listed as eligible voters on the federal government s 1935 IRA voting list for
the Rancheria; and (3) individuals listed on the plan for distribution of the assets of Sheep Ranch
Rancheria (which mcluded only Mabel Hodge D1x1e)

74. . Accordmg to the BIA, approximately 580 persons submitted personal genealogres to
the BIA in response to the April 2007 public notices. Plaintiff§ Velma Whitebear, Antonia Lopez,
Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antone Azevedo.each submitted gerrealogies and other |
documentation to tﬁe BIA in response to tﬁe public noﬁces.— None of the Brlrleys submitted
docurnentajcion in .response to the public notices. The BIA has _no’r released the genealogies or the
results of its analysis of the information submrtted.. The Tribe has separately obtained genealogies

~ from each of its members. | |

~ Burley Attempts- to Re-Litigate Her Claims Before the Board -
75.  Burley appealed the Regional Dir'ector’s April 2, 2007 deeision to the Interior Board of

Indian Appeals. | | |

76.  InJanuary 2010, the Board decided Burley's appeal. The Board recognized that the

AS-IA’s February 11, 2005 decision and the ensuing federal litigation had already finally determined

the followmg issues: (1) that the BIA did not recogmze the Tribe as bemg organized; (2) that the BIA

did not recognize any tribal government that represents the Tribe; (3) that the Tribe’s membershlp was
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not necessarily limited tovthe Eurleys and Yakima Dixie; and (4) that the BIA had an obligation ’Fo.

| ' ensure that a “greater tribal community” was allowed to participate in organizing the Tribe. The -
Board recognized that, to the e%ctent Burléy's appeal attempted to relitigate those issues, it had no
jurisdiction over her claims. Accordingly, the Boérd _dismissed all of Burley's claims (including those
: claifns not discussed here), except for a single, nafrow issue.

77.  According to the Board, the Burley aﬁpeal raised a solitary issue that had not already
been decid’edvby the AS;IA: the prqccss for décidiﬁg "who BIA will recognize, individually and
collectively, és members of the 'greater tribal community' thét BIA believes must be allowed to
participate in the general council meeting of the Tribe; for organizational purposes.” The Board
| erroneously characterized this as a “tribal enrollment dispute," because it failed to recognize that the
 lineal descendants of historical Tribal members are already Tribal members ana therefore that the
BIA’s 2007 proposved assistance; with Tribal organization would not confer membership on these
péople.’ Because it lacks jurisdiction over “enroilrﬁent disputes,” the Board referred the issue to the
} AS-IA for resolution. | |
| The AS-TA’s Angust 31 Decision

78, The AS-IA issued his initial decision in the Burle;y appeal on December 22, 2010.
Plair;tiffs challenged the De;cer'nbe'r 22 Decision before this Court, and the AS-IA withdrew the
dec;ision on April 1, 2011. The AS-IA stated in his April 1 letter that he planned to issue a new
decision.

79. On'April 6, 2011, in a related California state court prc;ceeding,' attorneys for Ms,
éurley stated in open court that they had been inforrne_zd'that the AS-1A planned to issue a new
decision reaffirming the sﬁbstance of the December 22 Decision aﬁd making that decision invulnerable

to le.gal challenge. |
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- 80.  After briefing by Ms. Burley and the Plaintiffs, the AS-IA iasued his August 31
‘Decision on August 31, 2011. |
81.  Inthe August 31 Decision, the AS-IA reached substantially thé same conclusions as he |
had in his Decerrlber 22 Decision, again purporting to decide issues long settled and not subject to
further ahpeal. Contrary to the Court of Appeals ruling, the AS-IA declared that the Tribe can
organize itself Withoul complying with the IRA; that the Tribe has already established a valld ’
government u.nder the 1998 Reeolution, Which was signed hy only two people; and that the United
States must.carry on government-to-government relations with Burley's anti-majoritarian couneil. In
addition, the AS-IA grossly cxceeded his authonty over Tribal matters by purporting to determine that
the membership of the Tribe is hm1ted to five people, and by erroneously charactenzmg the other 242
members of the Tribe as "potential,"” rather than actual, members.
Consequences of the Secretary’s Unlawful Decision k
82. '_As a result of the AS-IA’s unlawful August 3l Deeision, the Plaintiffs have suffered
and ulill continue to suffer great injury, including but not limited lo the following:
83. Plaintiffs have been and will be denied the benefits of Tribe membership.

a. . The Auguet 31 Decisiou finds that "the citizenship of the [Tribe] consists solely
of Yakima Dixie, Silvia Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and Tristian Wallace:!" Thus,
individual Plaintiffs (e).ccept for M. Dixle) are denied membership in the Tribe by the decision.
Denial of Tribal membership is a violation of f_lmdarhental rights. |

b. The August 31 Decision gives the Burleys corrlplele control over Tribal
merhbership and governance, including the power to exclude Mr. Dixie from.membership The
Burleys have already purported to disenroll Mr. Dixie once, in 2005, although it purported to re-enroll

him in 2009 for litigation purposes

! Reznor, Paulk and Wallace are Burley's daughters and granddaughter, respectively. -
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34, ‘ As aresult of the August 31 Decision,_Plairztiffs are denied their rightful place in the
lérger Indian community and culture. | '

85.  As aresult of the August 31 Deciéion, Plaintiffs are not and will not be eligible to -
receive federal health, educatioﬁ and other benefits provided to members of recognized Indian Tribes.

"86.4 As a result of the Augrlst 31 Decisior_n, Plaintiffs have been and will be denied the E
oppqrtunity to i)articipate in the orgarlization and governance of the Tﬁbe.

. & Because the August 31 Decision erroneously finds thet individual Plaintiffs
(except for Mr. bixie) are not members of the Tribe, it denies deny them any role in the organization.
of the Tribe. Indeed, the August 31 Decisioﬁ speciﬁcaily finds that none of the Tribe's members
except for trle Burleys and Mr. Dixie have any citizenship rights, including the right 0 participate in
the Tribe's government. 3 | » |

b. The Aﬁguet 31 Decision finds that the T.ribe "is not required to 'organize' in
accord with the procedures of the IRA" and that its general_ council as defined under the 1998
Resolution is :"vested wit}r the full aﬁthorﬁy of the Tribe, and may conduct the fuil.range of
governmen"c-to-govemment relations with the United States.” Because the Decision disavows any' :
requlrement that the Trlbe form a government that is representatlve of its entire membership, neither
Plam’nffs nor any of the Tribe's other members W111 ever have the opportumty to part101pate in the
Tribe's self-government.

87. By denying Plaintiffs' membership in tlre Tribe and recognizing the Burley governme_nt
under the 1998 Resolution, the August 31 Decmon strips the Tnbal Council of leg1t1macy and
1nterferes with the vital programs that the Counc11 has estabhshed to benefit the Tribe and its members
" strengthen Tribal culture and traditions, and restore Tnbal ties w1th trle larger Native Amencan

community,
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88.  The August‘ 31 Decision, if upheld by the Court, could provide a basis for allowing
Burley to divert funds held in trust for the Tribe by the State of California. Beginning in 1999, Burley .
represented to the California Gambling Control Commission (“Comﬁlission”) that she was the
authorized rcpr'esentati've of the Tribe and entitled to collect fund\s paid by the state to tribes that do not
operate casinos or- gaming devices. Burley receiveci millions of dollars from the Commission, which
were meant for the Tribe, between 1099 and 2005 (the “State Funds™).

a. None of the Plaintiffs received any of the State Funds. ‘The Plaiﬁtiffs do not
know of any members of the Tribe who received or benefited from ény of the State Funds. except for
Burley and her immediate family. The Plaintiffs do not know of any prégrams for the benefit of the
Tribe or its memﬁe_rs that were created or supported with the Funds. |

b. | In 2Q05, the Commission ceased distribution of the State Funds to Burley on the

~ ground that the federal government d1d not -reéognize her as the apprdpfiate'rép;esentative of the
Tribe. Burley has filed litigation in California Suﬁcrior Court, seeking to compel the Commissibn to
resume distribution of the State Funds to her, including approximately $7.5 milliqn of the State Funds
that the Commission has withheld since 2005. See California Valley Miwok Ti vibe v, California
Gambfing Control C.ommiss'ion,_No. 37—2008;00075326 (Sup. Ct. San Diegé). Burley seeks to
introduce the August 31 Décision as evidence that she is entitled to receive the State Funds.

o c ~ If Burley receives thé State Funds, Mr. Dixie and the members of the Tribal
Council ill be denied the benefit of the State Funds, because the State of Califorsia has no control
over the use of thé State Funds once they are paid to a tribe. | |

d. If Ms. Burley receives the State Funds, the Tribe will be denied the Funds,
because Ms. Burley is not a legitimate repreéentative of the Tribe. - N

89.  The August 31 Deci;sion will allow Burley to divert federal funds intended for the

‘Tribe. Beginning in 1999, and continuing through 2007, Burley received federal grant monéy
©.23-
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intended for the Tnbe based on her representation that she was an authorlzed representative of the
Tribe. The grant money was provided through a “self-determination contract” pursuant to the Indian
© Self- Deterrmnatlon and Education Assistance Act 25U0.S. C § 450 et seq. ("PL 63 8”) to assist the

Tribe in organizing under the IRA. Burley received as much as $400,000 to $600,000 per year under

thls contract.

a. " Burley did not use the PL 638 funds to organize the Tribe consistent with the
IRA. Instead, she vsought to disenfranchise Plaiﬁtiffs and other members of the Tribal cbmmunity and
to secure the benefits of Tribe membership only for herself and her immediate family.

b The BIA previously indicated its intent, based on the AS-IA's December 22
Decision, to enter into a ne\;_v PL 638 confract with the Burleys. If the August 31 Decision is allowed to
stand, the Tribe will be denied its rightful use of tﬁe PL 638 fu:qu, begaﬁse those funds will be paid to

Burley and her illegitimate government instead.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Arbitrary and Capricious Agency Action in Violation qf fhe APA)

90. . Plaintiffs re-allege the ébdx;e paragraphs and incofporate fchose parag.rapils herein as if
" set forth in full. | |

91.  The APA pfovides thgt a court‘must hold unlawful and set aside agency action that is
“arbitrary, capricious, an abusve of discretion, of otherwise not in accordance with law.” 5 U.S.C.‘
§706(2)(A). -

92, The AS-IA’s Augus£ 31 Decision constitutes “final agenéy é‘c‘tion.”

93.  The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A). bécause it uhlawfully
feopened and addre;sed issues not within fhe scope or jurisdiction of the Boarld,appeal from which the

decision arose.
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94, The August 31 Decision violates APA seétion 706(2)(A) because, without reasoned
decision making or foundation in the record,‘ it re%/erses judicially approved, longstanding Department
policy and prior Department c.ietenninaﬁoné regarding the status of the Tribe, the Burley government,
the applicaﬁon of the IRA to the Tribe, and the Departr‘nént's obligation to ensure that it deals only
v.vi’ch legitimate fepresentatives bf a tribe's members. |

" 95,  The August 31 Decision violates APA sectibn 706(2)(A) because the agency failed to

consider the Plaintiffs' legitimate reliance on Defendants' prior interpretations of their governing

- statutes.

96. - The Aﬁgust 31 Decision violates APA se'ction 706(2)(A) because it ié unsupporteﬁ by :
substantial évidencg in thé record before the agency. |

97. The August.?al Dgcision is arbitrér'y and capricioﬁs, an abuse of d‘iscrletion, or otherwise
not in aécordan,ce with law because BIA failed to'carry out its duty to ensure that the interests of all
Tribai members were protected-durihg the "prpces;s for organizing the Tribe and choosing its
: leadership, -and to ensure that the governing docurﬁénts for the Tribe reflect the will of a méj ority of

such members.

98.  The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it is precluded by the

doctrine of res judicata.

99.  The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it is barred by the

doctrine of judicial estoppel.
© - 100. The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it is barred by the -

~ doctrine of litigation estoppel.

101. The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it is inconsistent with

the IRA.
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102. The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it concludes that‘,thei
Tribe only has five members, relies on the 1998 Resolution Wilich is invalid bvecause':‘it was not
.adopted by a majority of the Tribe's members, and relies on an enrollment of the Burleys into the Tribe
which was not approved by a majority of the Tribe's n;xembers.

103. The. August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it abdicates‘the
Secretary’é ﬁduciafy dut_y to the Tribe and its'members. Under the IRA, the Secretary has a duty to
ensurle'tha"c the Department reco gnizes only a legitimate tribal government that reflects the
participation of a majority of the Tribe's membership. In addition, under section 450J of PL 63 8? the
Secretary has a‘ﬁduciary duty to ensure that any tribai'c;rganization that receives federal funds to
suﬁport tribal governineﬁt, programs and sefvices actually uses those funds to proyide services and
" assistance to the tribe's mémbérs in a fair and uniform mannet.

.104.  The August 31 Decision is arbitrary and capricious because the AS-IA failed to .
' consider relevant evidence bearing on the issues before him and ignored evidence contradicting his
position. This e\;idgnce includes, but i_s not limited to: | | |

a. = Personal genealogies and o}:her information submitted to the BIA in response to
the BIA’s 2007 public notice regarding Tribal organization, which demonstrate

that there are currently several hundred adult members of the Tribe;

b The Tr_ibe"s current roster of adult members submitted with Plaintiffs’ May 3;
2011 briefing, which demonstrates that there are currently sgVeral hundred adult

members of the Tribe;

c.  Information showing that the 1998 Resolution was adopted without the
participation or consent of a majority of the Tribe’s adult members at that time;

and
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d. Evidenc‘e of irregularities and improprieties in Burley’s attempt to displace Mr.
Dixie as Tribal chairperson and take control of the Tribe for herself.

105. The 'Augusf 31 Decision violates APA seétion 706(2)(A) becausé, on information and
belief, the' AS-IA and personnél involved in the de;:isional process for the August 31 D‘cci'sion engaged
in improper ex parte contacts with representatives of Ms. Burley prior to the issuance of the August 31
Decision, and prejudged the issues iﬁvolvéd in the August 31 Decision, in violation of the
Department's regulations at 43 C.F.R. Part 4, including 43 C.F.R. section 4.27..

"106. The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because, on information and
belief, the AS-IA and persbnnel involved in the décisional process for the August 31 Decision engaged
: m improper ex parte coptacts prior to the issuance of the August 31 Decision With BIA employees or

represéntatives ‘who represenf.ed the BIA in Ms. Burley's appeal before the Board, and prejudged the
issﬁes involved in the August 31 Decisioﬁ, in violation of the Department's regﬁlations at43 C.FR.
'Part 4, including 43 C.F.R. seption 4.27.

107. Asa direcf and proximate result of the August 31 Decision, Mr, Dixie, Velma
Whitebear, Ant;)nié Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antone Azevedo have beén and
- will continue td be denied the benefits of Tribe membership and will suffer irreparable injury and
financial loss: | .

108. Aé a direct and proximate result of the August 31 Decision, Mr. Dixie, thé Tribal
Council, and Velma Whitebear, Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and _Anfone i
Azevedo have been and will continue fo be denied their rightful opportu.nity to participatelin t_fxe
orgaﬁization and Agovemar.lce of the Tribe and will suffer irreparable injury and ﬁna'tncial loss.

109. As a direct and proximate result of thé August 31 'D‘eg:ision, the Tribe, the Tribal
Council and the rﬂembers of the Tribe, inchiciing Mr. Dixie, Velma Whitebear, Antonia Lopez,

Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antone Azevedo, have been and will continue to be denied the

- -27-
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ﬁsé of the PL 638 funds available through the BIA, and the State Funds provided by the Commission,
and will suffer irreparable injury and financial loss. |

110.  As a direct and proximate re‘éult of the August 31 Decision, the Tribe and its members
will be denied recognition to conduct traditional Tribal activities and official acts, and to intervene in
legal and regulatory proceedings to protect the Tribe's interests énd- those of its members, and will

suffer irreﬁarable iﬁjury and financial loss.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

(Violation of Substantive Due Process)

111. Plaintiffs re-allege the above paragraphs and incorporéte those paragraphs hérein as if
set forthin full, | |

112, 'fhé August 31 Decision violates the Due Process Ciause of the Fifth Amen&mént t;o the |
United States Constitution because it arbitrarily deprives Plaintiffs of their fundamental rights as
Tribal members, including the. rights to Tribal citizenshiﬁ, politi'cal‘ répresentation, and self-
government. Because the August 31 Decision .kndwiqgly and deliberately stﬁps Plaintiffs of these B
rights Without regard for bedrock principles of dernocr'ati_c- self-gove;rnment_and maj ority rule, the AS-
IA,‘s egregious conduct shocks the conscience anclj must be fev.ersed.

" THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
o (Violaﬁon bf Procedural Due Process)

v1 13. | Plaintiffs re-allege the abdvé parég_raphs aﬁd incorporate those pafagraphé herein as if -
set forth in full.l |

114, ’fhe August Si Decision violatés the Due Process Clause 01'° the Fifth' Amendment to the
United States Constitution because it erroneously deprives Plaintiffs of constitutionally protected
liﬁérty and property intefests without adequate procedural protections, including a pre-deprivation

hearing. These interests include, but are not limited to, the right to education, health and other benefits
-28-
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to Awhich individual Plaintiffs are entitled as members of the Tribe, gﬁd the right to the State Funds anq
- the PL 638 funds to which the Tribe is legally entitled. |
115. The Aﬁgust 31 Decision violates the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amcndrnen.t to the
United States Constitution because, on information and belief, the AS-IA and/or other Depaftment
personnel involved in the decisional pfocess for the August 31 Decision engaged in impropér ex .parte
Confacts with représéntatives of Ms. Bﬁrley_ prior to the issuaﬁce of the August 31 Decision and
| prejudged the i_s'sues'involved in the Décision. |
116. The August 31 Decision violates the Due Process Clause of the Fiﬁh Amendment to the
United States Constitution because, on information and belief, the AS-IA and/or other Department
., lpersonnel invblved in tﬁe"decisional process for the August 31 Decision engaged in improper ex parte
- contacts prior to vth_e iséuance of the August 31 Decision with BIA eﬁployees or representatives who
represented the BIA in Ms. Burley's appﬁeal before the.Board, and prejudged the issues involved in the

Decision.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Violation of the Indian Civil Rights Act)

117.  Plaintiffs re-allegev the above paragraphs and incorporate those paragfa_phé herein as if
set forth in full. | |

118. - The August 31 Decision violates the Indian Civil Righ:ts Act, 25 U.S.C. 1301 }et seq.,
(“ICM”) because, by récognizing the 1998 Resolution and Burley government, it deprives Plaintiffs
and othgr Tribal members of fundamentgl‘political rights and protected liberty and property interests
bwithout due prbcesé of law. | | | _

119. The Aungust 3_1 Decision violates the ICRA because, by recognizing the 1998

Resolution and Burley government, it denies individual Plaintiffs and other Tribal members equal

-29.
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protection by depriving them of fundamental rights that are granted to other Tribal members, without a

legitimate basis.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Court issue an order:

- A, Vacating and setting aside tlie August 31 Decision as arbitrary, capricious, unsupported:
by substantial evidence in the record, an abuse of discretion and otherwise not in accordailce with law; :
B. Declanng that the Secretary (actmg through his subordmate the AS-IA) violated his
ﬁducxary duty to the Tribe and its mdmdual members by adopting the August 31 Decision and
allowing the Burleys to obtain federal funding intended to benefit the Tribe and its members;
C.l' Declaring that the AS-IA's August 31 Decision denied Plaintiffs substantive due
.prciqess; . . |
| D. Declairing that the AS-IA's August 31 Decision denied Plaintiffs procedural dué
process; ‘ o | | j |
E. Declaring that the AS-IA’-s August”3 1 Decision violated the ICRA by reco gnizing a
Tribal govérniﬁg document and governing body. th,at deprive Plaintiffs and other Tribal members of
equal protection and due process of law;’ |
F. Directing the AS-IA and the BIA to establish government—to government relations only
with a Tribal government that reﬂec_ts the participation of the entire Tribal community, including .
individual PIaintiffs and all other Currerit Membérs;'
G Preliminariiy and penhanently enjoining the Secretary, AS-1A aild BIA from taking any
action to implenient the Angust 31 Decision, including any award of federal funds to the Burleys

under PL 638 or any other federal law or program,;

-30-
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H. Awarding the Plaintiffs damages, and attorneys fees and reasonable costs incurred in

connection with this action; and

L Granting such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.
Respectfully submitted,

/s/ M. Roy Goldberg
M:ROY GOLDBERG

(D.C: Bar No. 416953)
CHRISTOPHER M. LOVELAND

(D.C. Bar No. 473969)
Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP
1300 I Street, N.W., 11th Floor East

Washington, DC 20005-3314
Tel: (202) 772-5313
Fax: (202) 218-0020
‘ - rgoldberg@sheppardmullin.com
Dated: October 17,2011 . ' cloveland@sheppardmullin.com

Of Counsel:

ROBERT J. URAM (admitted pro hac vice)
Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP
Four Embarcadero Center, 17th Floor.
San Francisco, California 94111-4109

« Tel:  415-434-9100

Fax: 415-434-3947
ruram@sheppardmullin.com
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. CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on October 17, 2011, T caused a true and accurate copy of the
foregoing First Amended Complaint to be served via first class mail, postage prepaid and via email on

the following persons:

Kenneth D..Rooney

Trial Attomey

United States Department of Justice
Environmental and Natural Resources Division
P.O.Box 663 .

Washington, D.C. 20044
kemmethrooney@usdoj.gov -

Robert A. Rosette, Esq.

565 West Chandler Boulevard
Suite 212

Chandler, Arizona 85225

rosette@rosettelaw.com

 Js/ M. Roy Goldberg
M. Roy Goldberg
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240

AUG 31 201
Ms. Silvia Burley :
10601 N. Escondido Place

Steckton, California 95212

Mr. Yakima Dixie
. 1231 E. Hazelion Avenue.
Siockton, Califomnia 95293

Dear Ms. Burley and Mr. Dixie:
tatroduction and Decision

On December 22, 2010, T sent you a lefter setfing out my decisidn in response to-a question
referred 10 me by the Interior Board of Indian Appeals (IBIA)in California Valley Miwak Tribe
v. Pacific Regional Direcror; Bureau of Indian Affairs, 51 IBLA 103 (January 28.2010) (IB1A .
decision). 1 detern'unad that there was “no need for the BIA to continue its previous efforts 10
organize the Tribe's government, because it is organized-as.a General Couneil, pursuant to the
[1998 General Counci! Resolution] it adopted at the suggestion of the BIA.™ T concluded further
" that there was “ho need for the BIA to continue its previous efforis.to ensure that the Tubu
confers tribal citizenship upen ather individual Miwok Indians in the surrounding area.’

1 issued my December decision without providing the parties a formal oppartunity te brief ni¢ on
ihe facts and issues as they saw them. As a result of subsequent actions by both parties, -

T determined 1o withdraw the December decision. and, on April 8, 2011, 1 requested briefing

. from the parties. -Cournsel for the parties provided detailed responses with numerous exhibits.

I appreciate the time and effort that went into provndlng these Tesponses. I have considered them

carefully.

Based on Lhe litigation records in the prior Federal court actions:in both California and
. ‘Washington, D.C., the proceedings before the Department’s Iitterior Board of Indian Appeals.
and the mateiial bUb.mll(Ed in respanse to my April 8 letier, 1 now find the following;

(1) The Cahfomm Valley. Miwok Tribe (CVMT) is a federally n.wunzcd tribe. and hdb
* been continuously recognized by the United States since at least 1916;

(2) At the presem date, the citizenship of the CYMT consists solely of Yakima Di..\;ie:.
Silvia Burley. Rashel Reznor. Anjelica Paulk. and Tristian Wallace;

CGCC-RJIN -
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{(3) The CVMT today operates under a General Councﬂ form of government, pursuant to
- Resolution #CG-98-01, which the CYMT passed in 1998, facilitated by representatives
of the Bureau of Indian Affairs (Bureau or BIA)(1998 General Council Resolution);

(4) Pursuant to the 1998 General Council Reécvluticm the CYMT’s General Council is
vested with the governmental authority of the Tribe, and may conduct the ﬁﬂl range of
g ovemment-to government relations with the United States; :

(5) Although this current General Council form of government does not render CVMT an
“organized” tribe under the Indian Reorganization Act (IRA) (see e.g., 25 U.S.C. 476(a) and

~ {d)), as a federally recognized tribe it is not required “to organize™ in accord with the
procedures of the IRA (25 U.S.C. § 476(h));

(6) Under the IRA, as aménded, it is impermissible for the Federal. governimert 10 treat
tribes not “organized” under the IRA differently from those “organized™ under the IRA
(25 U.8.C. §§ 476(D)-(h)); and :

(7) As discussed in more detail below, with respect to finding (6), on this particular legal
point, I specifically diverge with a key underlying rationale of past decisions by
Department of the Interior (Depa.rtment) officials dealmg with CVMT maﬁers apparently
beginning around 2004, and decide to pursue a different policy dir echon Under the
circumstances of this case, it is inappropriate to invoke the Secretary’s broad authority 1o
manage “all Indian affairs and [] all matters arising oul of Indian relations.” 25 U.8.C.
§ 2, or any other broad-based aithority, to justify interfering with the CVMTs internal
governance. Such interference would run counter to the-bedrock Federal Indian law
principles of tribal sovereignty and uibal self-government, according to which the tribe,
as a distinct political entity. may “manag[e] its own affairs and govern[] itself;” Cherokee
. Nation v. Georgm 30 U.S. 1, 16 (1832); and would corflict with this Administration’s;
¢lear commitment to protect a.n_d honor tribal sovereignty..

Ubviously, the December 2010 decision, and today's reaffirmarion of that decision. mark a 180-
degree change of course from positions defended by this Departmient in administrative and
Jjudicial p'roc.gedingq‘over the past seven years. This change is driven by a straightforward
correction in the Department's understanding of the California Valley Miwok Tribe's citizenship
and a different policy perspccuve on the Departmcnt s legal obligations in light of these lacts.

As discussed below, the BIA clear! y understood in'1998 that the acknowledged CYMT cmzens
had the right (o exercise the Tribe’s inkerent sovereign power iri a manner they chose. s :
unfortunate that soon after the 1998 General Council Resolution was enacted, an intra- tribal
leadership dispute erupted, and both sides of the dispute found, al various points io time in the
intervening years, that it served their respective interests to raise the theory that the BIA had &
duty to protect the rights of approximately 250 "potential citizens" of thé Tribe. A focus on that
theory has shaped the BIA's and the Department’s -posit.ion on the citizenship question ever

" } recognize that \lle D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals’ "()OS opinion upholding prnor Depariment efforts to organize
tlie CVMT pursuant to the IRA afforded broad deference 10 the Departmeni’s prior decisions and interpretations of
whe law. ol Falley Mivok Trihe v. United States, 515 F.3d 1262, 1264-68 (D.C. Cir. 2008).

2
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since. By contrast, today's decision clears away the misconceptions that these individuals have
inchoate citizenship rights that the Secretary has a duty to protect. They do not. The Tribe is not
camnprised of both citizens and potential citizens. Rather, the five acknowledged citizens are the
only citizens of the Tribe, and the General Council of the Tribe has the exclusive authority to
determine the citizenship criteria for the Tribe. Santa Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 57
(1978). Ibelieve this change in the Department’s position is the most suitable means of
resolving this decade-long dispute and is in accord with principles of administrative law. Nai '/
Cable & Telecomms. Ass'nv. Brand X Internet Servs., 545 U.S: 967 (2005).

Background

This decision is necessitated by a leng and complex tribal leadership dispute tha1 resulted in
extensive administrative and judicial litigation. Much of the factual background is set out in the .
prior decisions, so it is not necessary to repeat or even summarize all of it here.

The history of this Tribe, and the record of this-case to date, demonstrates the following:

The CYMT is a federally recognized tribe, 74 Fed. Reg. 40,218, 40,219 (Aug. 11, 2009):
In 1916, the United States purchased. approximately 0.92 acres in Calaveras County,
~ California, for the benefit 6f 12 named Indians living on the Sheepranch Ranchena (now
. Sheep Ranch)(Rancheria) (51 [BIA at 106); '
s The Indian Agent, who in 1915 recommended the purchase of the 0.92 acres, des¢ribed
" the group of 12 named individuals as “the reranant of once quite a large band of Indians
in former years living in and near the old decawn& mining town known and designated
on the map as ‘Sheepranch,”™ /d.;

s The record shows only one adult Indian hved on the Rancheria in 1935, a Jeff Daws whn
voted “in favar of the IRA™ Id.;

» In 1966, the record shows only one-adult Indian, Mabel Hedge Dixie, Yakima Dnue 3
‘mother, lived o the Raricheria, when the BIA crafted a plan for dmtmh_uuon of tnbal .
assets pursuant to the California Rancheria Act of 1958, Pubi. L. No. 85-671, 72 Stat, 619,
as-amended by Act of Aug, I'l, 1964, Pub. L. No. 88:419, 78 Stat. 390;

& Mabel Hodge Dixie was to be the sole distributée of tribal assets under the 1966
Rancheria distribution plan;

¢ While the Bureau initiated ﬂ’lL process to terminate the Tribe, it never declared the Tribe
terminated and has never ireated-the Tribeas if it-had been terminated; :

» In 1994, Yakima Dixie wrote the BIA asking for assistance with home repairs and
describing himsel[ as “the only descendant and recognized. ... member of the Tribe.”

(51 IBIA at 107);

~» Al some point during the 1990s, Silvia Bur]cv ‘contacted BIA for information related io
her Indian heritage, which BIA provided. and by 1998—at BIA’s suggestion—Burley
had contacted Yakima[]” Dixic (as the IBIA has.noted, “it appears that Burley may trace
her ancestry to a “Jefl Davis’ w]wo was listed on the ]9 3 census. 51 1BIA a1 107,
including footnote 7:

» On August 5. 1998, Mr., Dixie “signed a stdtemcm accepting Burlev as an cnrolled
member of the Tnbe and also enr olling Burley s two daughters and her Dranddau ghter.”
Id.;

¢ 4q
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# The Tribe was not organized pursuant to the IRA prior to 1998 and did not have organic .
documents setting out jts form of government or criteria for tribal citizenship;

» ln September of 1998, BIA staff met with Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley “1o0 discuss
vrganizing the Tribe,” and on September 24, 1998 sent follow-up correspondence
recommending that, “given the small size of the Tribe, we recommend that the Tribe
operate as a General Council,” which could elect or appomt a chairperson and conduct
business. Jd. at 108;

o OnNovember 5, 1998, Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley signed a resolution establishing a
General Counu] which consisted of all adult citizens of the Tribe, to serve as the
governing body of the Tribe. /d. at 109;

» Less than five months later, leadership disputes arose between Mr Dixie and Ms.
Burley—and Lhose conflicts have contimied to the preserit day:*

» Initially the BIA recognized Mr. Dixie as Chairman, but later recognized Ms. Burley as
Chairperson based primarily upon the April 1999 General Council action appointing
Ms. Burley as Chairperson - an action concwrred in by Mr. Dixie. fd:;

e Mr, Dixie later challenged Ms, Burley” 5 1999 appointment;

s [In2002, Ms, Burley filed suit in the name of the Tribe alleging that the Department had
breached its trust respansibility to the Tribe by distributing the assets of the Rancheria 10

_ a single individual, Mabel Dixi¢, when the Tribe had a potential citizenship of “nearly
- 250 people[.]” See Complaint for Injunctive and Declaratory Relief at 1, Cal. Valley-
Miwok Tribe v. United States, No. 02-0912 (E.D. Cal. Apr. 29, 2002);

e In March, 2004, the BIA Superintendent rejected a proposed constitution from Ms.
Burley because she had not involved the “whole tribal community” in the governmental
organization process;

* On February 17, 2005, the A.ctmg Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs issued a decision
on Mr. Dixie's 1999 appeal, ruling that the appeal of the Bureau’s 1999 decision t

" recognize Ms. Burley as Chalrperson was moot and that the BIA would Tecognizé Ms..
Burley only as a person of authority within the Triber..

= Ms. Burley sued in D.C. District Coutt challeriging the February 7003 decision;

s Afier the Distriet Court dismissed her challenge, Cal. Valley Miwok Tribe v. United
Stares, 424 F,Supp. 2d 197 (D.D.C. 2006), the D. C. Circuit Court of Appeals affm‘ned
Cal. Val/e Miwok Tribe v. United States, 515 F.3d 1262 (D.C. Cir. 2008);

= In January 2010, the IBIA rejected Ms. Burley's appeal objecting to, .among other
matters, the Superintendent’s decision 1o continue to assist the Tribe in organizing its
government according to the IRA because it viewed the marter as “effectively and
functionally a tribal enrollment dispute,” and then referred the matter to me on

* jurisdictional grounds. '

In response to the Board’s referral. ] issued my December 22, 2010 decision letter. [ intended
that decision to resolve the citizenship questiorn referred to me by the IB1A by finding that the
current Tribe’s citizenship corisisted of the five acknowledged citizens noted above and
recognizing the Tribe's General Council as a tribal government with which the United States may

? I note that the Depariment rcpealedl\ has offered 10 assist jn mediating this disputé—10 no avail. The amount uf .
time and resources focused on these disputes reflects poorly on all the parties. and they must be mindful fha
continuing this imprudent dispute risks potential adverse consequences wel] beyond the Tribe and 18 citizens.

4
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conduct government-to-government relations. Almost immediately, Mr. Dixie filed suit in the
D.C. District Court challenging that decision. Recognizing the complex and fundamental nature ,
of the underlying issues, and because I desired the benefit of submissions from the interested
‘parties. T set aside that decision and requestcd formal briefing.

The submissions by the parties in response to my request were thorough. [ have carefully
reviewed the submissions and find they were most helpful in enhancing my understanding of the
parties’ positions.

Amnalysis

1t is clear to me that the heart of this matter is a misapprehension about the nature and exterit of
the Secretary’s role. if any, in determining tribal citizenship of a very small, uniquely situated
tribe. Related to this issue is the Tribe's current reluctance to “organize” itself under the IRA,
choosing instead to avail itself of the provisionsin 25 U.S.C. § 476(h), first enacted in 2004,
which recognizes the inherent sovereign powers of tribés “to adopt governing documents under
procedurcs other than those specified , .. [in the [IRA.]”

A/lpp]icabj'li(y af General Legal Authorities of the Secretary of the Inierior in Indian Affairs

The D.C. Circuit viewed § 476(11) as ambiguous, and then granted Cheyron deference to the
then-Secretary™s interpretation of that pravision. 513 F.3d at 1266-68. The D.C Circuit put great
welght on the Secretary’s broad authority over Indian affairs under 25 U.S.C. § 2, writing that
“|wle have previously held that this extensive grant of authority gives the Secretary broad power
to carry oul the federal povernment’s unique responsibilities with respect to Indians.” Id. at
1267. citations aimitted. In additionto § 2, 25 U.S.C. §§ 9, and 13, and 43 U.8.C. § 1457, aré
often cited as the main statutory bases for the Depattment’s general authority in Indian affairs.
Cal. Valley Miwok Tribe v. United States, 424 F Supp, 2d 197,201 (D.D.C. 2006); see also
COHEN’S HANDBOOK. OF FEDERAL INDIAN LAW § 5.03[2] at 405 (2005 ed.) [hereinafter
C OMEN]. The D.C. Circuit also cited two cases involving separate bands of the Seminole .
Nation for the general propositions that the United States hasan “obligation™ “to promote a
-{ribe’s political integrity” as well as “the responsibility to ensure that [a tribe’s] representatives.
with whom [it] must conduct government-to-government relations, are valid representatives of
the [uibe] as a whole.” 513 F.3d at 1267 (emphasis added by the Court), citing, Seminole Nalion
v. United Siates, 313 U.S. 286, 296 (1942), and -Seminole Nation of Oklahoma v. Nor. ton, 223
F.Supp. 2d 122, 140 (D.D.C. 2002). :

In my view, prior Departmient officials misapprehended their responsibility when they: (1) took
their focus off the fact that the CVMT was comprised 2 five individuals, and (2) mistakenly
viewed the Federal government as having partjcular duiies relating 1o individuals who were.not
citizens of the uibe. I decline w invoke the broad legal authorities cited above to further intrude
into internal tribal citizenship and governance issues in the instant case, In making this decision,
1 also am mindful of the Supreme Court's recent guidance concerning; (1) the importance of
ideniifying “specific rights creating or duty-imposing statutory or regulatory prescriptions™
before concluding the United States is obligated to act in a particular manner in Indian affairs, -

h
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‘and (2) the central role Federal policy p]éys inbédminist-‘erinc Indian affairs. United States v.
Jicarilla Apache Nation, 131 S. Ct. 2313, 2323-24, 2326-27 (June 13, 2011).

Application of Specific Legal A ulhorin'e.y

In my view, prior Departmenl officials (from 2003 to the present) fundamentally misunderstood
the role of the Federal government in addressing the CVMT citizenship and governance issues:
(1) they misunderstood and ignored the legal authority of CVMT to govern itself through its -
General Council structure without being compelled to “organize™ under the IR A; and (2) they
confused the Federal government’s obligations to possible tribal citizens with those owed 10
actual tribal citizens.

The February 11, 2003, decision of Acting Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs Michael D. Qlsen
stated: that, until the Tribe organized itself, the Department could not recognize anyone as the
Tribe's C halrperson and that the “first step in organizing the Tribe is identifying the putative
tribal members.” (2005 Decision at 1-2, discussed in 51 IBIA at 112); The D.C. Circuit, after
citing the Secretary’s broad authority under 25 U.S.C. § 2, endorsed this approach as a
reasonable interpretation of 25 U.S.C. § 476(h) because “[t]he exercise of this authority is
especially vital when, as is the case here, the government is determining whether a tribe is
organized, and the receipt of significarit federal benefits turns on the decision.” 515 F.3d at

- 1267. AsIhave stated above, Treject as contrary to §-476(h) the notions that a tribe can be
compelled 1o “organize™ under the IRA and that a tribe not so organized can have “significant
federal benefits” withheld ﬁom it, Either would be 4 clear violation of 25 U. S .C. § 476(%).

The CVMT currently consists of the five citizens identified above. Under tire current facts, the
Department.does not have a legitimare role in attempting to force the Tribe to expand its’
¢itizenship.” Department officidls previously referyed to “'thx,'impor'tailce of participation of a

- greater fribal community in determining citizenship critetia,” (Superiniendeni®s 2004 Decision at
3. discussed in 51 1BIA at 111-112). The D.C. Cireuit, referring to the Tribe’s governance
structure that arguably would maintain a imited citizenship, stated “[t]his antimajoritarian
gambit deserves no stamp of approval from the Secretary.”™ 515 F.3d at 1267. However, | know
of no specifie statutory or regulatory author ity that warrants such intrusion into a federally
recognized tribe’s.internal affairs. (As to the more general sources of authority cited in support

_ of Federal oversight of tribal matters, [ have ewpldmcd my views on the proper scope of those
authorities above). “Courts have consistently recognized that one of an Indian tribe’s most basic
powers is the authority to determine questions of its own membership.” Santa Clara Pueblo v.
Metriinez, 436 U.S, 49 57, 72 n.32 (1978); United States v. Wheeler, 435 U.S., 313,322 n.18
(1978); COHEN § 3. 03[3] at 176, citations omitied. *[1]{ the i issue for which the determination
is important involves internal affairs of the Indian nation, it is more consistent with principles of
tribal sovereignty to defer to that nation’s definition.”” Jd. at 180, As discussed in the previous
paragraph. ] also believe that, based on an incorrect interpretation of § 476(h), the previous
Administration’s views on the IRA s application 1o this case were erroneous and led 1o an
improper focus on expanding the size of the Tribe and altering the form of its government.

5 Whne | believe that it is equuablv appropriate for the CVMT General Counceil 10 reach mit 10 potential citizens of
the Tribe, 1 do not believe it is proper, us a mager of law, for the Federal government lo atiempt o impose such a -
requirement on a federalh recof:mzed tribe.

A
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Mr: Dixie invokes the 4/an-Wilson IBIA cases to support the theory that the Secretary has a duty
to ensure that the potential citizens are involved in the organization of an unorganized, but
“federally recognized tribe.* 30 TBIA 241. But, in fact, Alan-Wilson works directly against M.
Dixie's position, and this distinction provides additional support for my decision. Unlike CVMT,
the Cloverdale Rancheria was a federally recognized tribe terminated under the California
Rancheria Act. It was later restored pursuant to the 7illie Hardwick litigation and settlement,
which required the Rancheria to organize its tribal government under the TRA.

30 1BIA 241, 248,

My review of the history of the CYMT compels the conclusion set out in the December decision
and reaffirmed here: the CVMT has been continuously recognized, and its political relationship
with the Federal government has not been terminated. The five acknowledged citizens are the
only cuwrrent citizens of the Ttibe, and the Tribe’s General Council is authorized to exercise the
Tribe’s governmental authority. In this case, agam the factual record is cléar: there are only five
citizens of CVMT. The Federal government is under no duty or obligation to “poiential citizens™
of the CVMT. Those potential citizens, if they so desire, should take up their cause with the
CVMT Genual Council directly.

{iven both parties’ acknowledoment of the existence of pther mdwxduals who could potentially
become tribal citizens, the Department’s prior positions are understandable. The Department
endeavored (0 engage both parties in a resolution of the wibal citizenship issues, including offers
of assistance from the Department’s Office of Collaborative Action and Dlspute Resolution
(CADR)—10 no avail. By the time this matter was referred to me by the IBIA in Jamiary 2010,
serious doubts existed about the likelihood of the parties ever being able 1o-work together 1o
resolve the issues mvo]vmg the citizenship and govemance, of the Tribe.

.Absent an e\press commlitment from tht: pames to formally definetribal cmzensmp eriteria, any
further effort by the Department to do so would result ii an unwarranted intrusion into the
internal affairs of the Tribe. Moreover; given the unfortunate history of this case, most Iikely
“such efforts would not succeed in accomplishing this objective.. While there may be rare
circumstances in which such an intrusion would be warranted in order for the Secretary to-

~ discharge specific responsibilities, no such specific law or circumstances exist here. .

Accordingly. unless asked by the CVMT General Council, the Department will make no further

efforts to assist the Tribe o organize and define its citizenship. | accept-the Resolution #GC-98-
01 as the interim governing document of the Tribe, and as the basis for resuming government-to-
government re]dno ns. beLwer.n the United States and the Tribe. : '

While T appreciate that the General Council Reso‘lution mady prove lacking as to certain aspects
of tribal governance, I-also recognize that this tribe is very small and uniquely situated. Many
~ tribes have been able'to govern effectively with limited or no written governing documems

! Mr. Dixie also invokes the case of Seminole Nation of Oklahomu v. Norten. 223 F Supp.2d 122 (D.0.C. 2002) in
support of his position, Seminule Nation involved a dlspule where a particular faction of the Tribe assensd rights 1o -
wibal citizenship under an 1866 treaty. /d, a1 138, There is no overriding treaty or conurc.ssmna] enactrnent
governing tribal eftizenship at issue in this dispute.

CGCC -RJIN-040



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 32 . Filed 10/17/11 Page 41 of 42

Conclusion
.Based upon the foregoing analysis, I re-affirm the following:

. CVMT is a federally recognized tribe whose entire cx’nzenshjp, as of this date, consists of
" the five acknow]edcred citizens;

» The 1998 Resolution established a General Councll form of govemnment, comprised of all
the adult citizens of the Tribe, with whom the Departmert may conduct government-to-
government relations;

o The Department shall respect the va.hdly enacted resolutions of the General Councxl and

*  Only upon a request from the General Council will the Department assist the Tribe in v
refining or expandmg its citizenship eriteria, or developing and adOptmg other governmo
documents.

In my December 2010 decision letter I rescinded several earlier decisions, I am persuaded that
such attempts to rewrite history are fraught with the risk of unintended consequences. Past
actions, undertaken in good faith and in reliance on the authority of pnor Agency decisions,
should not be called into question by today’s determination that those prior Agency decisions
were erronecus. Thus, today’s decision shall apply preSpectlvely :

: Thlb decision is final for the Deparunent and effectwe 1mmed1atelv but implementation shall be
stayed pending resolution of the litigation in'the District Court for the District of Columbia,
California Valley Miwok Tribe v. SaZa*m C.A. No 1; :11-¢v-00160-RWR (filed 03/16/11).

Finally, I strongly encourage the parties to work within the Tribe’s existing government «trucuu'e
10 resolve this longstanding dlspule and bring this: contentions per'od in the Tnbe 8 hastory toa
close.

Sincerely,

Larry Echo Hawl:

-

Assistant Secretary— ndian-Affairs-

ce: Robert A. Rosette, Esq.
565 West Chand]er Boulevard, Smte 212
Chandler, Arizona 85225

Roy Goldberg, Esq.

Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP
1300 I Street, N.W:, 11" Floor East
Washington, D.C. 700.03—3_31-}
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Elizabeth Walker, Esq.
Walker Law LLC
429 North St. Asaph Street
Alexandria, Virginia 22314

Kenneth D. Rooney

Trial Attorney

Uniled States Department of Justice
Environment and Natural Resources DIVJSIOH
P.C. Box 663

Washington, D.C. 20044-0663

- Mike Black, Director, Bureau of Indian Affairs
MS-4513-MIB

1849 C Street, N.W,

Washington, D.C. 20240

Amy Datschke, Direeior

Pacifi¢ Regional Office, Bureau of Indian Aﬂ‘aus
2800 Cottage Way, Room W- 820

Sacramente. California. 95825

Troy Burdick, Superinitendent

Ceniral California Agency, Bureaw of Indian: Aﬂmrs
650 Capitol Mall, Suite 8-500 :
Sacramento, California 95814

Karen Koth, Altomcy—Adwsor

Office of the Soligitor, Pacific Southwest Reglon
2800 Cottage Way, B-1712

Sacramento, California 95825.
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